
1. 10:00 – 10:10 Welcome and Introductions Chair Bek Ashby 

2. 10:10 – 10:15 Approval of Agenda 

Approval of Minutes from December 18, 2020 (Attachment A) 

Consent Calendar 
• Approval of SFY 2021 2nd Quarter Invoice (Oct-Dec 2020) (Attachment B)

ACTION 

ACTION 

ACTION 

3. 10:15– 10:30 2021 Consolidated Grants Recommendations (Attachment C)  
PRTPO is responsible for recommending to WSDOT how to rank regional 
proposals for statewide Consolidated Grants funding. PRTPO is asked to 
take action on a ranking recommendation and an amendment to include 
these projects in the 2019 Human Services Transportation Plan.  

ACTION 

4. 10:30 – 10:35 Contract Authorization for GIS Services (Attachment D) 
In December PRTPO approved $14,300 for contracted GIS support 
services. Completion of adopted procurement procedures determined that 
the AWC Consortium offers the best value proposition for PRTPO at this 
time. The Board is asked to approve Resolution 01-2021 authorizing 
PRTPO to execute a service agreement to obtain GIS technical services.  

ACTION 

5. 10:35 – 10:45 PRTPO Request for End of Year Services (Attachment E) 
In assessing budget status as PRTPO approaches the end of the biennium, 
there is $4,500 available to obtain one-time contracted support services. 
The Board is asked to authorize the PRTPO Coordinators to solicit services 
for a quick response micro-service contract to support PRTPO’s Regional 
Transportation Plan follow-up activities in SFY 2022.  

ACTION 

6. 10:45 – 11:15 Update from WSDOT Olympic Region    
This is a check-in with the Regional Administrator of the WSDOT Olympic 
Region, John Wynands. John will talk with the Board about policy and 
investment considerations WSDOT is making near-term, and long-term 
through the Strategic Investment Work Group – and what it means for the 
Peninsula region. He will share insights on the state of transportation, 
identify upcoming opportunities for inter-governmental coordination, and 
field questions from Board members. This will be an interactive discussion. 

BRIEFING 
John Wynands, 

Regional Administrator 
WSDOT Olympic Region 

7. 11:15 – 11:25 Kick-off – SFY 2022-2023 Unified Planning Work Program (Attachment F) 
It is time for PRTPO to begin developing its next Unified Planning Work 
Program, or UPWP. This is the work plan and budget that guides PRTPO’s 
work with its members. This discussion will inform development of a draft 
UPWP for the Board and WSDOT to review in April. PRTPO will adopt it in 
June and it will go into effect on July 1, 2021.   

DISCUSSION 

8. 11:25 – 11:35 SFY21 Year-end Activities - Foundational Plan Updates (Attachment G) 
Over the next six months two core administrative documents will be 
updated. PRTPO’s Title VI Plan and its Public Participation Plan will be 

BRIEFING 

PRTPO EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING 

February 19, 2021 | 10:00 – 12:00 

Zoom Meeting – Login Below 



updated to reflect the transition from WSDOT in 2019 and incorporate 
more current demographic characteristics. This briefing provides an 
overview of those plans and update processes.  

9. 11:35 – 11:45 Legislative Updates 
This is a member discussion of early legislative considerations that may 
have bearing on PRTPO or member transportation interests. 

DISCUSSION 

10. 11:45 – 11:50 PRTPO Coordinators Report (Attachment H) 
These are short updates to keep the Executive Board apprised of PRTPO 
activities not addressed elsewhere on the agenda and opportunities of 
possible interest to members. The report includes links to additional 
resources where available. 

INFORMATION 

11. 11:50 Public Comment Period 
This is an opportunity for anyone from the public to address the Board. 

12. 12:00 PRTPO Member Updates and Adjourn 

Bek Ashby, Chair 
Randy Neatherlin, Vice-Chair Tammi Rubert, Secretary 

Next Executive Board Meeting – April 16, 2021, 10:00-12:00 

Draft SFY 2022-2023 UPWP 
Draft PRTPO Public Participation Plan 

Biennial By-Laws Review 

Click here to download the 2021 PRTPO Resource Manual 

Join this Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/969108680?pwd=dy93VHBMU3hlc1ZBdWVZTDZxY09HZz09 
Meeting ID: 969 108 680  |  Password: 4780 

Dial in by phone: 
+1 253 215 8782 US
Meeting ID: 969 108 680

PRTPO.org

Additional Attachment: PRTPO Quick Start Guide is a short orientation roadmap for those new to PRTPO. Welcome!

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/969108680?pwd=dy93VHBMU3hlc1ZBdWVZTDZxY09HZz09
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/5eebd256bac4f23605781ccb/t/6026281e71407f3e3dbf256b/1613113396976/2021+PRTPO+Resource+Manual_v2.0.pdf


Minutes of Meeting 
PRTPO EXECUTIVE BOARD 
December 18, 2020 
10:00 – 12:00 
Via Zoom 

CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Bek Ashby called the meeting to order at 10:00. 

ATTENDEES 

Executive Board: 
Clallam County Steve Gray (alternate) 
Jefferson County David Sullivan 
Kitsap County David Forte (alternate) 
Mason County Randy Neatherlin 
City of Port Angeles Lindsey Schromen-Wawrin 
City of Port Orchard Bek Ashby 
City of Poulsbo Michael Bateman (alternate) 
City of Sequim David Garlington (alternate) 
City of Shelton Deidre Peterson 
Port of Shelton Dick Taylor 
Clallam Transit Brendan Meyer 
Jefferson Transit Tammi Rubert 
Kitsap Transit John Clauson 
Mason Transit Danette Brannin 
WSDOT Olympic Region Dennis Engel (alternate) 
Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe Annette Nesse 
Skokomish Tribe Marty Allen 

Staff: 
Ed Coviello, Kitsap Transit – Lead Planning Agency, PRTPO Coordinator 
Thera Black, PRTPO Coordinator 

Others: 
Wendy Clark-Getzin, TAC Chair, Jefferson County 
Sara Crouch, Jefferson Transit – Lead Fiscal Agency 
Reema Griffith, WA State Transportation Commission 
Tamara Jones, WA State Transportation Commission 

Welcome and Introductions 
Chair Ashby welcomed attendees and provided a video roll call. 

She recognized two members for their outstanding service to PRTPO over the years, both of whom are retiring. 

• David Sullivan, County Commissioner for Jefferson County
• David Garlington, Public Works Director for City of Sequim

ATTACHMENT A



PR
TP

O
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

Bo
ar

d 
M

in
ut

es
 –

 D
ec

em
be

r 1
8,

 2
02

0 

2 

She acknowledged both men for their contributions to PRTPO and their communities. 

Approval of Agenda 
ACTION: Mr. Neatherlin moved, and Mr. Clauson seconded to approve the agenda. There were no 
objections to the agenda as presented. 

Approval of Minutes from October 16, 2020 
ACTION: Mr. Clauson moved, and Mr. Forte seconded to approve the minutes from the October 16, 
2020 meeting. There were no objections to the minutes as presented. 

SFY 2021 UPWP Amendment #1 
Ms. Black presented the two elements of the amendment. One element of the amendment would increase the 
budget by $11,873 by rolling over unexpended SFY 2020 funds into the work plan. Those funds would be 
directed to GIS support services and to follow-up on federal funding flexibility strategies. The second element of 
the amendment would shift $4,800 from Task 3 to Task 4 since Task 3 was over-resourced for the work to be 
done. This would be combined with the new SFY 2020 funds to increase the SFY 2021 budget for contracted GIS 
support services. Members were asked to approve Resolution 03-2020 amending the SFY 2021 UPWP as 
described. 

Members discussed the share of the funds proposed for contracted GIS support services and the value this 
would provide for members. Ms. Clark-Getzin recapped the TAC’s support for the proposed amendment and 
confirmed that establishing some PRTPO GIS capacity would have local and regional benefit. Mr. Forte 
confirmed that the expenditure of that much funding could be completed within the required time frame. Ms. 
Crouch affirmed that the budget assumptions made by staff were supported by PRTPO’s financial position. Mr. 
Meyer reiterated the value to the region of establishing GIS capacity as proposed. 

ACTION: Mr. Meyer moved, and Mr. Taylor seconded to approved Resolution 03-2020 amending the 
SFY 2021 UPWP. There were no objections to the Resolution as presented. 

PRTPO Legislative Forum Debrief and Next Steps 
Board members discussed takeaways from the three legislative forums and the need to be able to provide 
responses to legislative requests on short notice during the session. Mr. Wawrin-Shromen explained the kind of 
information needed sometimes is data but it is often a quest for on-the-ground local stories. Mr. Garlington 
observed that the upcoming session will be unlike previous sessions. It will be harder for legislators to get their 
questions answered in the traditional way. They may need more help this year getting access to information.  

Members discussed how to best meet these needs. The staff report proposed a list of regional topics with 
subject matter experts identified for each, and with data questions fielded by PRTPO coordinators. The goal 
would be to create a resource for legislative aides that enables them to quickly access the information they 
need. The capacity for nimble, quick responses is key. 

Mr. Neatherlin proposed a more streamlined approach that leverages the existing structure and process. He 
suggested that PRTPO authorize the Chair to be the primary point person in responding to requests. She would 
get support on information and logistics from the PRTPO Coordinator. The Chair may also delegate response or 
communications from someone else when appropriate or put legislators in touch with individual members. The 
Chair would also recognize if the nature of a question or topic warrants raising it with the Executive Committee 
or even the full Board in an expedited process. Such an arrangement could be established for one year and then 
evaluated next year.  



PR
TP

O
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

Bo
ar

d 
M

in
ut

es
 –

 D
ec

em
be

r 1
8,

 2
02

0 

3 

This is the first time PRTPO has designated someone with this responsibility. Mr. Neatherlin noted this approach 
fits within the existing structure and line of communication that is already in place, and could help the region 
provide legislative support in a nimble and effective way. 

Members discussed this approach. They concurred that Chair Ashby presents regional issues in a balanced way 
and is a good spokesperson for PRTPO. She advised that she would rely on the members for their expertise and 
support. Chair Ashby clarified that her role would be to educate and inform legislators, not lobby for projects or 
policies. Members affirmed that is their understanding, too, and decided to memorialize this decision with an 
action. 

ACTION: Mr. Neatherlin moved, and Mr. Taylor seconded the motion that Chair Ashby or her designee 
be appointed as the PRTPO spokesperson for one year to communicate with legislators on behalf of 
PRTPO and provide them with information about regional transportation issues. Ms. Black will 
provide information and support to Chair Ashby. There were no objections to the motion as 
presented. 

2040 Regional Transportation Plan Follow-up Strategies 
Ms. Black reviewed the work of the last few months to determine what course of action to take in response to 
big topics that surfaced during review of the draft plan in late 2019. She explained that while all the topics are 
important, most are either beyond the ability of PRTPO to do anything meaningful or are incorporated in work 
being done already.  

She identified two areas where PRTPO could provide some value through its regional work program. One of 
these areas is related to climate change response and the other is related to system resiliency. She explained the 
stand-alone topic of a regional Electric Vehicle strategy was integrated into the climate change response. Ms. 
Black advised that if these are the right two areas to begin addressing then details will be fleshed out during the 
UPWP development process that gets underway in February. She asked the Board to provide feedback on 
whether PRTPO should pursue follow-up work in these areas. 

Members discussed the value of building on work already done at the local level when possible. Both topics are 
relevant to work being done at the local level and can intersect with those efforts where appropriate.  Members 
discussed opportunities for regional coordination and consistency while also ensuring PRTPO stays focused on 
its authorized roles and responsibilities. 

Ms. Black reported that she will bring more details back to the Board when PRTPO develops its work program 
for the 2022-2023 UPWP. 

WSDOT Statewide Investment Strategy Group Report 
Ms. Black reported she had been tasked by the Board to represent PRTPO on the Investment Strategy Work 
Group convened by Secretary of Transportation Millar. He convened this group to explore ways to improve how 
transportation projects are identified for funding by the Legislature.  

Ms. Black advised the next meeting will conclude Phase 1 and at that time PRTPO will assume a monitoring role 
with the group instead of a participatory role. Benefits to the region of further participation are unclear at this 
time. PRTPO’s limited resources are better directed to other activities given the undefined nature of the group’s 
future work. She advised she will keep the Board apprised if anything of potential interest emerges. 



PR
TP

O
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

Bo
ar

d 
M

in
ut

es
 –

 D
ec

em
be

r 1
8,

 2
02

0 

4 

Presentation on the Washington State Road Usage Charge 
Ms. Reema Griffith, Executive Director of the Washington State Transportation Commission, briefed the Board on 
Washington’s Road Usage Charge, or RUC. The RUC is a mileage-based user charge being considered as a statewide 
transportation funding mechanism that in time could replace the state gas tax. The Transportation Commission 
completed a statewide pilot study in 2019 to assess its potential application in real-world cases. 

Ms. Griffith provided an overview of the gas tax and the imperative to identify an alternative, research since 2012 into 
viable alternatives to the gas tax, questions and concerns the Commission needed to answer in this research, and a 
review of the study itself. She explained the demographic and regional contexts the Commission evaluated, 
implications for various trade sectors and population groups, and mechanisms for collecting and reporting data. She 
presented the Commission’s findings and recommendations to the Legislature in 2020, and described the kinds of 
issues the Legislature will face in determining how to proceed.  

She answered questions and discussed a variety of topics with Board members. 

• A wide array of logistics will have to be worked out, ranging from data collection and reporting to
reconciling mileage-fees against gas taxes paid. These are especially challenging during the few decades
when society is shifting from gas-powered vehicles to electric or other alternate fuel vehicles.

• The RUC is being considered as an eventual replacement to the gas tax, bound by the same 18th

amendment highway-purpose restrictions. A new multimodal revenue source is needed that can
support a multimodal transportation system. Ms. Griffith highlighted a value-based mechanism the
Commission is recommending that could replace the lost MVET with a more equitable valuation
schedule. Such a mechanism could generate about $500 million a year for multimodal needs.

• Tribes collect gas tax directly from their fueling stations, and cities and counties receive direct
distributions from the gas tax. A challenging issue the Legislature will have to tackle is how these
collections and distributions would be affected by a shift in transportation revenue sources. Ms. Griffith
noted that this is a question with or without RUC as the vehicle fleet increasingly shifts to electric power.

Ms. Griffith invited members to follow work on the RUC at WARoadUsageCharge.org and offered to return in 
the future with updated information. 

Update on PRTPO Consolidated Grants Ranking Process 
The Consolidated Grants Ranking Committee will meet on January 7th to review and rank the nine proposals received. 
The TAC will consider its recommendation in January and the Board will receive the recommendation and take action 
in February. 

PRTPO 2021 Schedule and Appointments 
The 2021 schedule is out for the Executive Board and TAC. At this time the schedule assumes remote meetings. Staff 
will reach out after the first of the year to initiate 2021 members appointments to the Board and TAC. Ms. Black 
encouraged members to appoint a regular and an alternate to each. 

PRTPO Coordinator Report 
Ms. Black noted one additional update to the report: beginning in 2021, PRTPO will record the Executive Board 
meetings and post them online.  

Public Comments 
There were no public comments. 

Member Updates / Adjourn 
Chair Ashby adjourned the meeting at 12:00. 

Return to Agenda



ATTACHMENT B





























Return to Agenda



ACTION ITEM 

To: PRTPO Executive Board 
From: Edward Coviello and Thera Black, PRTPO Coordinators 
Date: February 12, 2021 
Subject: Consolidated Grants Ranking and HSTP Amendment 

Requested Action: 

The Executive Board is asked to act upon two items: 

1. Approve the rank assignment of Consolidated Grants applications for submittal to WSDOT
2. Amend the 2019 Human Services Transportation Plan to include by reference these 2021 Consolidated Grants

projects

Recommendations Before the Board: 

1. The Technical Advisory Committee concurred with the Ranking Committee recommendation concerning application
rankings. The TAC recommends the Executive Board approve that ranking, as presented below.

2. The TAC further recommends that the Executive Board amend the ranked projects by reference into the 2019
Human Services Transportation Plan.

Board members are encouraged to familiarize themselves with the projects before the meeting. There will not be 
individual project presentations. Videos of each project can be found on PRTPO’s You Tube channel and applications can 
be viewed on the Documents page of the PRTPO website.  

The rest of this brief summarizes the evaluation process that produced these recommendations. 

ATTACHMENT C

https://www.youtube.com/playlist?list=PLdygTQR5T_ZQFP5l-t0h8zFlP4OqUcTy6
https://www.prtpo.org/documents


2 

Overview: 

Every two years WSDOT identifies priority transit and special needs projects to receive funding in a statewide 
Consolidated Grants process. In its capacity as a Regional Transportation Planning Organization, PRTPO plays a role in 
that process, ranking the proposals WSDOT receives from applicants within the Peninsula region. Ranked projects are 
awarded points that contribute to their total scores in the statewide competitive process. Note that PRTPO has no 
funding to award in this process and has no say in the final funding decisions beyond this ranking assignment. 

Nine projects from within the region were received by WSDOT for evaluation. Proposals included four operating projects 
and five capital (vehicle) projects. Applicants included four transit agencies and two non-profit service providers.  

PRTPO convened a Ranking Committee to conduct the review and evaluation process: 

• Melissa Mohr, Kitsap County
• Annette Nesse, Jamestown S’Klallam Tribe
• Dick Taylor, Port of Shelton
• Dina Geizler, OlyCAP
• Eric Phillips, Intercity Transit (Thurston)
• Dennis Engel, WSDOT Olympic Region

The Ranking Committee was tasked with forwarding a recommendation to the TAC and Executive Board on rank 
assignments. Those projects assigned an “A” ranking will receive 50 additional points to their overall statewide 
competitive application score, projects assigned a “B” ranking will receive an additional 25 points, and those assigned a 
“C” ranking will receive an additional 12 points to their score.  

Committee members received copies of the statewide applications to review as well as pre-recorded presentations from 
each applicant about the proposals. They met on January 7th to review and evaluate the proposals, and to develop their 
ranking recommendation. Applicants were on hand to answer questions from committee members.  

Committee members compared operations and capital projects against each other, submitted from agencies as diverse 
as volunteer-based non-profit service providers and Kitsap Transit. Using the Pairwise evaluation tool PRTPO employed 
for the Transportation Alternatives Program ranking in May 2020, they compared every proposal to every other 
proposal and weighed considerations regarding vulnerable populations, service area, highly rural access, other funding 
resources, and more.  Members found every project to be a priority that serves important mobility needs that support 
coordinated human services transportation needs and worthy of funding.  

The Committee’s results are summarized in the table on page 1. Documentation of the Pairwise one-on-one evaluation 
results is attached. 

On January 21st the TAC considered recommendations put forward by the Ranking Committee. TAC members discussed 
the projects and heard from some of the Ranking Committee members about the review process.  

The TAC concurred with the Committee’s ranking recommendation and endorsed the Executive Board’s approval of 
the ranking recommendation as presented. 

Amendment of the 2019 Human Services Transportation Plan 

The Human Services Transportation Plan adopted by PRTPO in 2019 identifies vulnerable population groups and their 
mobility needs, and the array of service providers helping to meet this need. It describes mobility strategies and lists 
projects that support those needs. The HSTP is updated every four years. 



3 

Projects considered for funding for Consolidated Grants must support the HSTP and are typically derived from the plan. 
All the projects identified in the 2019 HSTP were fully funded in the 2019 Consolidated Grants call for projects.  

The 2021 Consolidated Grants process currently underway generated applications for additional projects that support 
HSTP strategies. Each application was checked for consistency with the HSTP and its goals and strategies. Every 
application is consistent with and supportive of the plan. 

That is why staff are recommending these projects be amended by reference into the existing plan. This will help 
maintain continuity between PRTPO’s responsibility to maintain the HSTP and PRTPO’s role in ranking statewide 
applications that support the HSTP. 

The TAC considered this during its review. The TAC recommended these projects be amended into the 2019 HSTP by 
reference. 

Staff posted legal notices on January 31 that the Human Services Transportation Plan would be amended to include the 
2021 Consolidated Grants projects by reference and requested any public comments. As of February 12, no comments 
have been received. 

Attachment: 

• Results of Pairwise One-to-One Evaluation

For More Information: 

Thera Black | 360.878.0353 |  TheraB@PeninsulaRTPO.org 

Edward Coviello | 360. 360.824.4919 |  EdwardC@KitsapTransit.com 

mailto:TheraB@PeninsulaRTPO.org
mailto:EdwardC@KitsapTransit.com


PRTPO CY 2021 Consolidated Grants Application Ranking

Project Proposals [Review order (A-I) were randomly assigned at start of evaluation]

G Clallam Transit: Route 16 Rural and Tribal Access

H Clallam Transit: Strait Shot  Operating Assistance

F Clallam Transit: Heavy Duty Replacement Coaches

I Coastal Community Action Program: Driven to Opportunity Operations

D Coastal Community Action Program: Driven to Opportunity Capital

C Ecumenican Christian Helping Hands Organization: ECHHO

A Jefferson Transit: Replace One Medium-Duty Cutaway for West Jefferson Service

E Kitsap Transit: Battery-Electric Buses

B Mason Transit: Vehicle Replacement

PAIRWISE EVALUATION MATRIX  

PROJECTS A B C D E F G H I Pts Prelim 
Rank

PRTPO 
Assign

A Jeff Transit - Cutaway Replacement A B C D A F G H I 2 8 C

B Mason Transit - Vehicle Replacement B B C D B B G H I 4 6 B

C ECHHO - ECHHO Service C C C C C C C C C 9 1 A

D CoastalCAP - Capital Project D D C D D D D D/H I 6.5 3 B

E Kitsap Transit - Battery-Electric Bus A B C D E F G H I 1 9 C

F Clallam Transit - Coach Replacement F B C D F F G H I 3 7 C

G Clallam Transit - Rt 16 Rural/Tribal G G C D G G G G I 6 4 B

H Clallam Transit - Strait Shot H H C D/H H H G H I 5.5 5 B

I CoastalCAP - Operations I I C I I I I I I 8 2 A

PRTPO
 w

ill assign (2) 'A' slots, (4) 'B' slots, and 
(3) 'C' slots to Consolidated G

rants applications

Return to Agenda



ACTION ITEM 

To: PRTPO Executive Board 
From: Edward Coviello and Thera Black, PRTPO Coordinators 
Date: February 12, 2021 
Subject: Contract Authorization for GIS Services 

REQUESTED ACTION: 

Approve Resolution 21-01 authorizing PRTPO to execute a one-year service agreement with the Association of Washington 
Cities GIS Consortium in the amount of $14,300 as per the attached Participation Agreement and Enrollment Application.  

Overview 

In December PRTPO approved a budget amendment to the Unified Planning Work Program authorizing funding for contracted 
GIS services to support regional analysis, mapping, and communications. With that funding approval, we implemented 
PRTPO’s approved procurement process to obtain services using the terms of Small Service Purchases. 

In addition to the established services offered by the Association of Washington Cities (AWC) GIS Consortium on a contract 
basis to public agencies, we sought bids and terms for the same work from other firms. Purchase Request Form 21-01, 
attached, provides the supporting documentation outlined in PRTPO’s Procurement Policy.  

AWC’s GIS Consortium has unparalleled expertise and an established track record of providing the desired services to public 
agencies across the state. The suitability of its terms and cost make it the recommended contractor for the GIS services sought 
by PRTPO. 

Based on staff findings from the referenced bid process, a contract for services with the AWC GIS Consortium was drawn 
up for Board consideration. The primary contract for services is AWC’s well-established contract for GIS services used by 
local agencies across the state. The Addendum addresses WSDOT requirements in the use of state RTPO funds on which 
PRTPO relies for this work.  

AWC’s standard agreement terms are one-year with recurring participation unless cancelled. At this time, it is assumed this 
will be a one-year service agreement. PRTPO will consider the question of whether to cancel after one year or continue future 
services in 2022 at a lower service level during its UPWP budget discussions in one year.  

Per the regional Procurement Policy, approval by a majority of the Executive Board is required before PRTPO can execute a 
contract for services with the AWC GIS Consortium. The Board is asked to approve Resolution 21-01 authorizing contract 
execution with the AWC GIS Consortium, with the understanding that minor modifications to the contract language may be 
needed to obtain approval from all parties. 

Next Steps 

Upon Board approval, PRTPO will initiate execution of a one-year service agreement with the AWC GIS Consortium. It is 
anticipated that PRTPO will be under contract in March. 

Attachment: 
Resolution 21-01: Approval of GIS Consortium Service Agreement 
Service Agreement – AWC GIS Consortium 
PRTPO Purchase Request Form 21-01 

For More Information: 
Thera Black | 360.878.0353 |  TheraB@PeninsulaRTPO.org 

Edward Coviello | 360. 360.824.4919 |  EdwardC@KitsapTransit.com 

ATTACHMENT D

mailto:TheraB@PeninsulaRTPO.org
mailto:EdwardC@KitsapTransit.com


PENINSULA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION 

RESOLUTION 01-2021 

Authorizing One-Year AWC GIS Consortium Services Agreement 

Recitals 

WHEREAS, the Peninsula Regional Transportation Planning Organization (PRTPO) is the designated Regional 
Transportation Planning Organization (RTPO) for the Peninsula Region and is in good standing with the 
Washington State Department of Transportation (WSDOT) in its agreements and certifications; and 

WHEREAS, PRTPO is responsible for developing regional information for state and local processes; and 

WHEREAS, PRTPO desires temporary technical assistance in starting up a Geographic Information System (GIS) 
to support the region’s information and communication needs; and 

WHEREAS, in December 2020 the PRTPO Executive Board amended the SFY 2021 UPWP and approved a 
budget of $14,300 for the purpose of obtaining GIS technical support services; and 

WHEREAS, PRTPO completed its bid review process in compliance with its Procurement Policy and determined 
that the Association of Washington Cities (AWC) GIS Consortium Program provides the best value to PRTPO for 
the desired services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE EXECUTIVE BOARD OF THE PENINSULA REGIONAL 
TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION: 

THAT the Chair be authorized to execute the attached services agreement between PRTPO and the AWC GIS 
Consortium Program for $14,300 with the understanding that minor changes in final language may be made; 
and 

THAT the Executive Board will make a determination during its budget discussions in February 2022 whether 
to continue the GIS service contract for another year or cancel the agreement. 

. 

APPROVED, this 19th day of February, 2021. 

ATTEST: ATTEST: 

____________________________________  ____________________________________ 

Bek Ashby, Chair John Clauson, Lead Planning Agency 



DRAFT

(Form revised 04-16-18) 

Association of Washington Cities 
Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Consortium Program 

Non-city entity 
Participation Agreement and Enrollment Application 

As a member in good standing with the Association of Washington Cities 

 __________________________________________________________________________________  
Member name 

Enrolls by this agreement as a non-city entity member in the Association of Washington Cities (AWC)
Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Consortium Program to provide opportunities to access GIS services
through the consortium.

The program offers AWC member jurisdictions the ability to have professional GIS services provided at the 
applicable member rate through the GIS Consortium Program. 

1. Administration & Management of the Program
AWC is responsible for the day-to-day operation of the GIS Consortium Program, which includes:
A. Assisting program participants in assessing GIS needs and providing GIS database access and views;
B. Assisting program participants in using basic GIS data services and views;
C. Providing access to tiered levels of membership services to members at negotiated rates though a GIS

consultant partner as determined by AWC, including, but not limited to:
• GIS needs assessments;
• development, aggregation, or maintenance of GIS data;
• access to online GIS views and data; and
• a specified number of hours of GIS consulting services.

D. Providing program information.

2. Governance of AWC GIS Consortium
A. AWC’s Chief Executive Officer (CEO) directs the operations of the AWC GIS Consortium Program.
B. The Technical Users committee, a committee composed of representatives of no more than five (5)

member cities/towns, appointed by the CEO, advises AWC on operational issues including contract
terms, allocation of resources to consortium members, program enhancements, conditions for
continued participation and other issues. This committee meets at least once per year.

3. Member agrees to:
A. Remain a member of the AWC GIS Consortium Program through the annual term of this agreement.
B. Maintain membership in the Association of Washington Cities through the year for each year of

participation.
C. Non-city entity members agree to pay an annual administrative service fee to be a member of AWC

GIS Consortium Program at non-city entity rates, as determined by AWC and provided on the current
non-city entity rate schedule. Non-city entities are not eligible to join at the Tier 1 level.

D. Pay a program service fee for each year of participation as determined by AWC for the Tier level the
member selects, as provided on the non-city entity rate schedule.

E. Pay additional fees, under the terms provided by the program, for additional consulting services
requested for work that exceeds the applicable tier level consulting hours originally selected. Additional
consulting services shall be requested in a work order approved by both AWC and the GIS consultant
partner, and the hourly rate and administrative fee will be as listed on the current rate schedule. The
Member is responsible for tracking consulting hours.

F. Provide notification no less than 30 days before the end of the annual term if the member wishes to
terminate the automatic renewal of the agreement.

Peninsula Regional Transportation Planning Organization



DRAFT

(Form revised 04-16-18) 

G. Termination from the program for non-payment of annual administrative service fee and program
service fees.

H. Work with the GIS consultant partner on development of the work order and review by the GIS
consultant partner and AWC prior to work beginning.

I. Commence work only after a need assessment is complete, unless agreed to in writing by the GIS
consultant partner. Be responsible for completion of the work order with the GIS consultant partner and
managing use of GIS consultant partner hours. The work order may reflect work beyond the current
program year if agreed by the GIS consultant partner and the work is initiated in the current program
year. A maximum of 40 consulting hours may rollover to the following program year if all work is not
completed within the term of this agreement. Any member with lapsed membership will have a
maximum of six (6) months to utilize any remaining consulting hours.

J. Unless otherwise agreed by the GIS consultant partner, Tier 2, 3, and 4 members agree to be
responsible for maintaining or updating their online viewer and portal, as applicable, after initial
development by the GIS consultant partner.

4. Indemnification/Liability
Each party shall indemnify and hold harmless the other and its directors, officers, employees, agents,
parents, subsidiaries, successors and assigns from and against any and all liabilities, claims, suits, actions,
demands, settlements, losses, judgments, costs, damages, and expenses (including reasonable attorney’s
fees) arising out of or resulting from, in whole or part, the acts or omissions of the indemnifying party, its
employees, agents or contractors and the indemnifying party’s affiliated companies and their employees,
agents or contractors.

6. Assignment
This agreement shall not be assignable by either party without prior written consent of the other party.

7. Term of Agreement
The term of this agreement is effective on ___________, 20__, for a one-year term, renewing automatically
each subsequent year upon payment of the annual administrative service fee and appropriate GIS program
service fees, unless the AWC GIS Consortium Program is notified in writing no less than thirty days prior to
the start of the annual renewal date for the membership year that the program member is terminating the
agreement.

8. Selection of Tier
Member agrees to join the GIS Consortium Program at the Tier selected below:
 Tier 2  Tier 3  Tier 4

Authorized by Program Member: 

____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
(Printed Name) (Title) 

____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
(Signature)  (Address/Street) 

____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
(Non-city entity Applicant) (Date) 

Authorized by AWC GIS Consortium Program: 

____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Peter King CEO 

____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
(Signature)  (Date) 

February xx 21

X

Bek Ashby Chair, Peninsula RTPO

Peninsula RTPO

60 Washington Avenue, Ste 200, Bremerton WA 98337



AWC GIS Consortium PRTPO Services Agreement Addendum  Page 1 of 2 

Addendum – AWC GIS Consortium Program 

Peninsula Regional Transportation Planning Organization (PRTPO) must comply with 
mandatory terms when using state funds to purchase goods and services. This 
agreement between PRTPO and the Association of Washington Cities (AWC) for 
services through the GIS Consortium Program is paid with state funds for Regional 
Transportation Planning Organizations (RTPO) passed through from the Washington 
State Department of Transportation (WSDOT). The following terms apply to the AWC 
GIS Consortium Program [GIS Consortium] as the Contractor for these services. 

1. Conservation. The GIS Consortium shall recognize mandatory standards and
policies relating to energy efficiency contained in the most current Washington State
Energy Strategy developed under chapter 43.21F RCW.

2. Requests for information. The GIS Consortium shall provide all information
requested by the PRTPO within five (5) business days of the request when such is
necessary for a progress report to the state. When information requested is for a
performance and expenditure report, the GIS Consortium shall provide all
information requested on or before the date as conveyed by the PRTPO. Failure to
do so may result in delayed payments to the GIS Consortium.

3. Records Retention and Access.  The GIS Consortium shall retain all records relating
to performance of the Contract for six (6) years after completion of the Contract or
longer if requested. The PRTPO and WSDOT, or any agent thereof, shall have full
access to all records retained under the Contract during normal business hours and
as often as they deem necessary. The PRTPO and WSDOT, or any agent thereof,
shall be permitted to audit, examine, and make copies, excerpts or transcripts from
such records at no cost.

4. Audits. The GIS Consortium shall cooperate with and promptly respond to any
independent audit conducted.

5. Amendments. This Agreement may be amended only in writing and only by
agreement by both parties following review and approval by WSDOT.

6. Purchases of Material.  Only those purchases of equipment specifically identified in
the Scope of Work shall be allowed to be purchased under this Contract. All
equipment must be purchased, managed, and disposed of in accordance with state
law and with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act. All purchased equipment shall only be
used for the sole purpose of regional transportation planning activities. Any
equipment on hand at the completion of the work shall become property of the state.



AWC GIS Consortium PRTPO Services Agreement Addendum  Page 2 of 2 

7. No obligation of the State.  The PRTPO and the GIS Consortium acknowledge and
agree that absent the express written consent by WSDOT, the state is not a party to
this Contract and shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities to the PRTPO or
the GIS Consortium or any other party pertaining to any matter resulting from this
Contract.

This provision is required to be included in any subcontract entered into by the GIS
Consortium or any sub-Contractor to carry out this Contract.

8. Non-Discrimination.  In all purchases, the PRTPO shall not discriminate on the basis
of race, creed, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, marital status, sexual
orientation, veteran status, disability, or other circumstance prohibited by federal,
state, or local law, and shall comply with Washington’s Law Against Discrimination
(RCW 49.60.030), Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990, and all applicable requirements of any other
nondiscrimination statute.

9. Compliance.  The GIS Consortium agrees to comply with all applicable federal,
state, and local laws in the performance of this Contract.

10. Equal Employment Opportunity.  The GIS Consortium agrees to abide by all state
and federal regulations with respect to employment. This includes, but is not limited
to, equal opportunity employment, nondiscrimination assurances, project record
keeping, audits, inspection, and retention of records.

11. Competency.  The GIS Consortium agrees that the services will be carried out only
by competent individuals who possess the necessary and appropriate skills, training,
experience, qualifications and licenses necessary to carry out the services assigned
to them under the Agreement. The GIS Consortium further agrees that all services
will be performed with due care, diligence, and skill consistent with the Agreement
and best industry standards.



Yes

 Date

(Print)
Name Title Agency

Purchase Date: Invoice Reimbursement Submittal Date:

AWC GIS Consortium Services Agreement Edward Coviello

Detailed Purchase Description:
Purchase a Tier II service contract for 100 hours of GIS support. Services include GIS assessment and work plan, 
set-up online portal, assemble and tailor identified public databases and other geospatial tools, develop regional 
analysis templates, data dashboards, and infographics, develop regional templates and mapping tools. 

Is this item or service included in the 
current year UPWP? (select one)

Submittal Date: 

PRTPO Purchase Request Form #21-01

Important: Please refer to the PRTPO Procurement Policy for further instructions on purchasing and required 
documentation, and complete both sides of this Purchase Request Form. Approval is required as noted prior to purchase.

Complete ALL Non-Shaded Sections (type or print legibly)
Simple Purchase Request Title: Person Requesting Authorization:

2.12.21

UPWP Task Area (select one) Subtask Unit Cost Total Cost

4 - Other PRTPO Activities GIS Support 100 hours svc 14,300.00

 Authorizing Signature

Total Final Cost: $14,300.00
Review and Approval

1. Micro Purchase Approval:

      _________________________________________

2. Approval of all other procurements requires a majority of the Executive Board.

      _______________________________________
PRTPO Chair

Date Approved:



Micro Purchase (less than $7,500) Competition is not required. Describe basis for price:

Catalog Price. Market price or price offered to general public.

Price set by law or regulation.

Other: 

Vendor 1

Vendor 2

Vendor 3

Vendor 1

Vendor 2

Vendor 3

Details of publication and technical review is in the RFP/Q file.

Small Service Purchases ($7,500 - $50,000)  Competition is required - document price rates or quotes from at 
least three (3) qualified vendors. Attach documentation.

  Select procurement method and complete vendor selection as appropriate:

Price compared to recent purchases of similar 
goods and/or services.

Small Material Purchase ($7,500 - $15,000)  Competition is required - document price rates or quotes from at least 
three (3) qualified vendors and/or an approved Vendor List. Attach documentation.

This is a recurring purchase - price quotes will be obtained periodically as needed.
Price quotes or RFP/Q were obtained to establish a competitive and reasonable price. 
Complete section below or reference RFP/Q if applicable:

Reason for final selection:

This is a recurring purchase - price quotes will be obtained periodically as needed.
Price quotes or RFP/Q were obtained to establish a competitive and reasonable price. Complete section 
below or reference RFP/Q if applicable:

Association of Washington Cities

Parametrix

ESRI

Reason for final selection:

Expertise, suitability for purpose, cost

Competitive Proposal (Material purchases greater than $15,000 and service purchases greater than $50,000)  
Competition is required - document formal written bids, proposals, or qualifications from multiple qualified sources, 
if possible. RFP/Q's may be used. Select one:

Approved RFP/Q was used to solicit proposals.

Documentation of formal proposals or qualifications is attached.

Reason for final selection:

Noncompetitive Proposal  Only possible when none of the above methods apply and  one of the following applies 
(check all applicable boxes):

The item or services are available from only one source.
An emergency exists beyond the control of PRTPO 



Notes:

Name of Government or Purchasing Cooperative

Name of other Government

Summary Notes:

The granting agency authorizes noncompetitive negotiations.

After solicitation of at least two (2) sources, competition is determined to be infeasible.

Government Cooperative Contract

Intergovernmental Purchase

- We reached out directly to AWC, ESRI, and Parametrix to inquire about GIS support services as described in the
attach bid request.
- AWC offers GIS support services through a local government program established in 2016 to fill a gap in affordable
technical services for public agencies. To date, the GIS Consortium has contracted with over three dozen communities
and special purpose districts across Washington to provide a wide array of GIS start-up and advanced support services.
See the GIS Consortium webpage at https://wacities.org/services/gis-consortium for more details and a listing of every
agency that has participated.

- During a bid meeting requested by ESRI, Heather Glock and Shane Clarke discussed the products and services ESRI
offers. Once it was clear that PRTPO has very limited needs and budget, both spoke highly of the services offered by
AWC, noting that this is the only such program in Washington. They informed us that their cost for comparable services
is much higher but offered to submit a bid for our records. They are very familiar with the AWC GIS Consortium and
affirmed that local agencies using the Consortium are satisfied with the services provided. It makes ESRI tools and data
more accessible to more people. They also provided an overview of the various features included in the ArcGIS Online
platform that the GIS Consortium can configure and other services that can be contracted with ESRI's in-house analysts.

- Parametrix presented a formal proposal for services, offering an alternative to what was described as "pre-packaged
technical services" such as those provided by the GIS Consortium. Parametrix proposed a more tailored GIS approach
that can grow to support planning studies in the future. PRTPO is not expected to need or create a robust GIS program.
Despite coming in slightly lower than AWC for the bid request, Parametrix experience is oriented around the GIS and
information needs of specific projects or studies more so than the broad, general applications PRTPO needs at this time.
Additionally, the majority of their relevant examples are much larger than PRTPO whereas the majority of service
contracts supported by the GIS Consortium are comparable to PRTPO's budget for this work. These are some of the
reasons why Parametrix was not the recommended service provider.

- Findings: AWC GIS Consortium offers the best value proposition to PRTPO for the services needed. Bid
details and correspondence are available on request.

Return to Agenda



ACTION ITEM 

To: PRTPO Executive Board 
From: Edward Coviello and Thera Black, PRTPO Coordinators 
Date: February 12, 2021 
Subject: Authorization to Procure End-of-Year Support Services 

REQUESTED ACTION: 

Authorize PRTPO to obtain a $4,500 micro-purchase for planning services to support Regional Transportation Plan follow-up 
activities in SFY 2022 and beyond. The requested services will collect, inventory, and assess available plans, data, regulatory 
policies, legislative initiatives, funding resources, and other existing background on electric vehicle infrastructure, usage, and 
policy throughout the Peninsula Region.  

Overview 

As the end of the biennium approaches, Lead Planning Agency, Lead Fiscal Agency, and PRTPO Coordinator staff are working 
to ensure all the funds budgeted in the SFY 2021 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) will be completely expended by June 
30. This close scrutiny of actual expenses from the first half of SFY 2021 and the projected completion of remaining work in
the second half indicates that there is $4,500 budgeted for work that will not be needed for the remaining tasks at hand.

WSDOT requested a response by February 8 as to whether PRTPO had any funds to turn back for reprogramming elsewhere in 
the state. The Executive Committee considered a range of options when they met on February 4 including a turnback of funds. 
They determined the region has a use for this $4,500 that supports the work program and declined to turn back the funds. 

This brief is about the proposed activity to accomplish with the $4,500. It entails a micro-purchase for planning services that 
support PRTPO program activities. Per PRTPO’s Procurement Policy, the Executive Board must authorize and approve the 
purchase request since it supports the work program.  

Following is a description of the proposed services this $4,500 micro-purchase contract would provide. 

Regional EV Inventory 

What would the services entail? Proposed services will collect and assemble, inventory, and assess available 
information about electric vehicle infrastructure across the region. PRTPO is interested in gathering all available 
information into a single regional repository to support future planning and coordination activities. Collection, 
assessment, and summary includes previously completed plans, infrastructure data and usage forecasts, GIS layers, 
previous and current investments, and current activities underway by members, utilities, or others throughout the 
four-county region. Services would also obtain and summarize relevant regulatory policies and legislative initiatives 
and provide an overview of various public and private funding opportunities. 

How would this benefit PRTPO? Enhancing the region’s readiness for electric vehicles emerged as a priority follow-up 
activity to support the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP). This is a unique opportunity to hire a subject matter expert 
familiar with EV infrastructure policy, planning, and economics to help jump-start this work. Instead of starting from 
scratch in SFY 2022 with PRTPO Coordinators trying to find and assess this information, this micro-purchase will 
establish a solid foundation of information to support PRTPO start-up efforts regarding system electrification. This will 
enable PRTPO and its partners to build upon work that has already been done and more quickly identify low-hanging 
opportunities for the region and its partners. Some of this will leverage the regional GIS work underway over the next 
few months, enabling a preliminary composite regional picture of EV readiness early in this process. 

ATTACHMENT E



2 

Is there benefit to PRTPO’s partners? We think this would generate value for PRTPO members interested in ways to 
leverage their efforts at system electrification with those of others. A regional repository can help identify 
opportunities for coordination and partnership. For many it will provide direct access to the widest array of 
information on electric vehicle infrastructure in the region. It may introduce members or other stakeholders to 
funding opportunities or regulatory considerations they would not have time to track down otherwise. It may also 
point to corresponding economic opportunities and related land use and utility considerations as new business 
models take shape around refueling stations of the future. From experts we have talked with it appears that evidence 
of regional coordination will be an increasingly important factor in competitive funding opportunities, including those 
from the private sector. This one-time service will establish a place from which that regional coordination and 
collaboration can begin. 

Does this require an amendment to the UPWP? This request does not change the budget of the UPWP and the work 
itself fully supports the RTP follow-up activities described in Task 2 and approved by the Board in December. For these 
reasons PRTPO does not need to amend the SFY 2021 UPWP to accommodate this work. 

Will this work be completed by the end of June? We believe this is a fairly straightforward service request for an 
individual or firm that actively works in this specialty area. June 30th completion will be a stipulation in the contract. 
The bigger factor affecting June completion is driven by PRTPO’s Executive Board schedule. PRTPO policy requires 
Board approval of the purchase order and contract for services for a micro-purchase when it supports the regional 
work program. These services do support the work program and so the work will not begin until the late April.   

Next Steps 

If authorized by the Board, PRTPO Coordinators will conduct a vendor recruitment process in accordance with the 
Procurement Policy and complete a Purchase Request Form documenting recommendation of the preferred provider. 

Based on results of vendor selection process a contract for services will be drawn up with the preferred vendor and reviewed 
for legal sufficiency with PRTPO’s legal counsel and with WSDOT, as required of RTPOs when obtaining services.  

This draft service contract will be presented to the Board for review and approval in April along with the Purchase Request 
Form documenting vendor selection. Assuming Board approval on April 16, the contract will be executed as soon as possible 
after the meeting and work will commence. Work must be completed by June 30 and invoiced by the first week of July.  

For More Information: 

Thera Black | 360.878.0353 |  TheraB@PeninsulaRTPO.org 

Edward Coviello | 360. 360.824.4919 |  EdwardC@KitsapTransit.com 

Return to Agenda

mailto:TheraB@PeninsulaRTPO.org
mailto:EdwardC@KitsapTransit.com


DISCUSSION ITEM 

To: PRTPO Executive Board 
From: Thera Black, PRTPO Coordinator 
Date: February 12, 2021 
Subject: SFY 2022-2023 UPWP Development 

REQUESTED ACTION: 

No action is requested. The Board will be asked to review a draft SFY 2022-2023 Unified Planning Work Program in April 
before it is submitted to WSDOT for review. The Board will adopt the new UPWP in June. 

Overview 

The Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) is PRTPO’s budget and work plan. It identifies how PRTPO will use the state funds 
it receives to accomplish its requirements as a Regional Transportation Planning Organization (RTPO) in accordance with RCW 
47.80. PRTPO is funded solely through state RTPO funds. It receives a two-year allocation each biennium. The 2022-2023 
biennium funding amount is $274,702 or $137,350 per year.  

The UPWP is organized into four primary work elements: 

Work Element 1 – Program Administration includes all activities needed to support PRTPO’s organizational needs 
such as meeting support, member services, accounting and legal services, general communications, Title VI 
compliance, and developing and maintaining the UPWP. It also includes fixed costs such as insurance, software 
licenses, membership fees, public notices, and other recurring expenses.  

Work Element 2 – Transportation Planning includes most of the on-going planning functions of PRTPO such as 
development and support for the Regional Transportation Plan and Human Services Transportation Plan, and grant 
administration for Transportation Alternatives and Consolidated Grants. It includes regional coordination efforts with 
WSDOT and other RTPOs, collaboration and GMA coordination with local partners, and tribal consultation. It includes 
PRTPO’s annual Transportation Outlook with legislators.  

Work Element 3 – Regional TIP includes development, amendment, and maintenance of the Regional TIP throughout 
the year as well as monitoring compliance with state Obligation Authority targets. 

Work Element 4 – Other PRTPO Activities identifies those activities above and beyond the core program that PRTPO 
will accomplish with its existing resources. In 2021 there was funding capacity for PRTPO to tackle several things that 
will have lasting value: a new PRTPO website; GIS technical services; an overhaul of the Public Participation and Title 
VI Plans; a foundational legislative agenda building process; and regional support for local use of federal funds.  

Structured in this way, Work Elements 1-3 address all the mandatory activities PRTPO must undertake to meet its 
requirements under RCW 47.80 while Work Element 4 identifies those “above and beyond” activities that support PRTPO 
needs and objectives as funding is available. This structure was developed for the SFY 2021 UPWP. It has worked well and will 
be used for the new UPWP. 

The UPWP is delivered by a small team that represents almost 2/3 of an FTE. 

• Kitsap Transit is the Lead Planning Agency and provides PRTPO Coordinator support. Edward Coviello provides about
¼ of that Coordinator support and I provide about ¾ of it, under contract to Kitsap Transit. Kitsap Transit also provides
support for records, accounting, web services, administration, and more.

ATTACHMENT F

https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=47.80
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=47.80
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/5eebd256bac4f23605781ccb/t/5ff39312e293bc1fe2b960bb/1609798423944/SFY+2021+UPWP_+Amend+1.pdf


2 

• Jefferson Transit is PRTPO’s Lead Fiscal Agency. Sara Crouch provides PRTPO’s financial services and works with the
state auditor.

There is regular and on-going coordination between the PRTPO Coordinators, Lead Agencies, and the Executive Committee 
throughout the year in monitoring and managing the UPWP. 

The SFY 2022-2023 Work Plan 

The 2022-2023 biennium will see a reduction in funding for PRTPO from the current biennium. PRTPO’s annual funding will be 
about $15,000 less than it has been, a reduction of 10 percent. This was known over a year ago and the Executive Board acted 
since the transition with this budget constraint in mind. Care has been taken to use any excess funding capacity in the current 
budget to build tools and templates that enable PRTPO to get more done with its existing resources going forward instead of 
expanding the program. Work was also completed on foundational policies that will serve the region long into the future.  

The following table shows current year budget comparisons to preliminary annual budget estimates for the next UPWP. Note 
the 2021 budget includes $31,873 in carryover funds from SFY 2020 and funds Work Element 4. There is no carryover in 2022. 

Work Element Annual Budget Notes SFY 2021 SFY 2022* 

1. Program Administration $79,012 $74,900 
Big audit will be completed in 2021 and future audits will be 
much less expensive. Recurring fixed costs increased. We 
now have a good handle on those recurring fixed costs. 

2. Transportation Planning $48,573 $53,000 

Additional resources to support RTP follow-up and to 
initiate an update to the Human Services Transportation 
Plan (finalize in 2023). Expected costs to administer grant 
programs is lower in future based on recent experiences. 

3. Regional TIP $7,960 $9,000 Boosted funds to incorporate GIS mapping for the RTIP in 
2022 using new GIS tools and resources. 

4. Other PRTPO Activities $48,600 $ - - 

* SFY 2022 figures are preliminary estimates and subject to change. At this time they reflect the SFY 2023 budget, too.

The most notable difference in the two budgets is Work Element 4 – Other PRTPO Activities. Going into the new fiscal year 
PRTPO does not have financial capacity for additional Board-identified activities. If we achieve new efficiencies in delivering the core 
work program, then we may have resources next year to re-program but at this time we anticipate available resources will be 
needed to deliver the core program. 

“Core program” is not limited to rote, routine, or administrative activities though. Among other things, the Executive Board will be 
active in developing and carrying out the Transportation Alternatives grant program next year, scoping and participating in specific 
activities related to EV readiness and regional resiliency, and launching a new round of engagement with the wide array of 
organizations that provide coordinated human services transportation to the region’s most vulnerable residents. Throughout all of 
this PRTPO will be deploying new GIS resources to support the various planning and programming efforts and collaborating with 
members to identify additional products and services of value to the region’s partners. 

Next Steps 

PRTPO Coordinators, Lead Agencies, and Executive Committee members will refine the budget and develop a draft SFY 2022-
2023 Unified Planning Work Program for the Board to review and refine in April. A final draft plan will be submitted to WSDOT 
for review in late April. It will be presented to the Board for adoption in June and go into effect on July 1, 2021. 

For More Information: 
Thera Black | 360.878.0353 |  TheraB@PeninsulaRTPO.org 

Return to Agenda

mailto:TheraB@PeninsulaRTPO.org


DISCUSSION ITEM 

To: PRTPO Executive Board 
From: Thera Black, PRTPO Coordinator 
Date: February 12, 2021 
Subject: SFY2 2021 Year-end Activities – Foundational Plan Updates 

REQUESTED ACTION: 

No action is requested. The Board will provide input during development and review of these plans prior to adoption. 

Overview 

Over the next few months two foundational plans will be updated. One is PRTPO’s Public Participation Plan, adopted in 2014, 
and the other is the Title VI Plan, adopted in 2015. While these kinds of plans are not updated frequently, these were written 
a number of years ago and merit a refresh to account for the transition from WSDOT and bring them up to date. Both plans 
provide policy guidance that informs how PRTPO conducts its work and engages with the community. Importantly, both plans 
communicate PRTPO’s values about civic engagement and access. 

The Board will review a draft of the Public Participation Plan in April for approval in June. For an organization like PRTPO this is 
not a state or federal requirement, but it is good policy. It helps clarify for the public how they can participate in, access 
information about, and provide input to the regional planning process. A good Participation Plan creates transparency for 
people unfamiliar with the organization and helps demonstrate PRTPO’s commitment to an open and inclusive process. 

PRTPO’s Title VI Plan is a federally required document. “Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 prohibits discrimination based 
upon race, color, and national origin in any program or activity that receives Federal funds or other Federal financial 
assistance”. While PRTPO does not receive federal funds, WSDOT does; as a recipient of state funds from WSDOT, PRTPO 
must comply with Title VI rules.  

The Title VI Plan provides a benchmark against which to evaluate PRTPO’s plans and programs to determine if there is any 
discrimination so it can be addressed. The goal is to ensure public funds do not encourage, subsidize, or result in 
discrimination. The Title VI Plan also describes PRTPO’s grievance procedures. Unlike the Public Participation Plan which will 
be readable and formatted for the general public, a Title VI Plan is written to satisfy specific state and federal requirements 
and so will not be as readable in comparison. 

Update of the Title VI Plan entails a significant amount of data collection for the four-county region. The new GIS tools PRTPO 
is obtaining will allow analysis of the latest census data to identify protected populations and assess Limited English 
Proficiency throughout the region. Regional assessment and considerations for Title VI will be somewhat different now that 
PRTPO is independent from WSDOT. 

The Board is expected to receive the draft Title VI Plan in June for adoption in August. 

This briefing is an opportunity to ask questions and share insights applicable to the updates. The current versions of both 
plans can be found on the Documents page of the PRTPO website under “Other Documents”.  

For More Information: 
Thera Black | 360.878.0353 |  TheraB@PeninsulaRTPO.org 

ATTACHMENT G

Return to Agenda

https://www.prtpo.org/documents
mailto:TheraB@PeninsulaRTPO.org


INFORMATION ITEM 

To: PRTPO Executive Board 
From: Thera Black, PRTPO Coordinator 
Date: February 12, 2021 
Subject: PRTPO Coordinator Report 

This update is for your information. Links to additional resources are provided where appropriate. Information in this 
report may have value to others in your organization and is intended to be shared. My contact information is at the end 
if anyone has follow-up questions.  

Since the Board’s December 18 Meeting: 

• 2021 Consolidated Grants ranking workshop. As discussed elsewhere in the agenda, PRTPO hosted a workshop with
the Ranking Committee to evaluate and rank Consolidated Grants applications for consideration by the Board.

• Technical Advisory Committee meeting on January 19. The TAC provided input on and contributed to materials on
the Board’s February agenda.

• Executive Committee Meeting on February 4. The Executive Committee met remotely with the Lead Planning
Agency and Lead Fiscal Agency to discuss issues coming before the Board and provide direction on work program
activities.

• Other Staff Activities of Interest to Members:

o Outreach to all ten Indian Tribes with lands in the Peninsula region was conducted. Invitations to sign the
updated Interlocal Agreement and become active members were extended by Chair Ashby to the Hoh Tribe,
the Port Gamble S’Klallam Tribe, the Quileute Nation, and the Suquamish Tribe. An invitation to join and
participate with PRTPO was extended to the Quinault Indian Nation and there has been some initial follow-
up. Updated appointments have been received from the region’s five active members including the Lower
Elwha Tribe, which had not made an appointment in 2020.

o Introduction meeting with Karen Affeld, Executive Director of the North Olympic Development Council to
discuss upcoming NODC efforts related to climate resiliency in a meeting organized by Lindsey Schromen-
Wawrin. We also talked about PRTPO and its regional planning efforts including upcoming activities to
address EV readiness and regional resiliency in support of the Regional Transportation Plan. There is interest
in further information sharing in the future and possible coordination.

o Meeting with John Wynands, Regional Administrator for the WSDOT Olympic Region, to talk about the
Statewide Investment Strategy Work Group, alignment with PRTPO’s near-term needs and capacities, and
long-term opportunities for greater collaboration between PRTPO and WSDOT. John will attend PRTPO’s
February meeting to talk with Board members about this and other topics.

o Meeting and follow-up discussion with Bryan Dias, Brian Moorehead, and Bob Berg of WSDOT Local
Programs – Olympic Region to work through needs and opportunities for local agency training on managing
federally funded transportation projects. PRTPO is planning for a training session in March.

ATTACHMENT H



2 

o Discussion with Nancy Huntley, WSDOT Local Programs – HQ about flexibilities in programming federal
funds in the STIP, differences for obligation, and what options are currently available to local agencies. This
is input to issues regarding local use of federal funds and follow-up work directed by the Board.

o Coordinators consulted with a subject matter expert to discuss various needs PRTPO and its partners face in
terms of electric vehicle (EV) readiness, the state of the practice for planning and implementation, and
strategic first steps that PRTPO might take to best support the region and its partners. Further work was
conducted to follow-up on some of the leads and suggestions as input to a procurement request.

Other Information of Interest: 

 STIP Training in March. WSDOT Local Programs is conducting its STIP training program with virtual sessions in
March. This training is for City, County, Tribal, Transit, Port, RTPO, and WSDOT staff who work with the six-year
Transportation Improvement Program, the Regional TIP, and/or the STIP. This is highly encouraged training.

 Secretary’s 2021 State of Transportation Update. WSDOT Secretary Millar made his annual presentation on the
state of transportation in Washington to legislators at the start of this year’s session. This year’s presentation is
entitled Return on Investment – Ideas for our transportation future and making that vision a reality. From the
link to WSDOT’s website you can see the pdf slides or watch a video of his presentation to the legislators.

 Special Study of COVID-19 Impacts on Ferry Ridership. The Washington State Transportation Commission
completed a study in late 2020 of the impacts of the pandemic on ferry ridership by route with comparisons to
pre-pandemic ridership. The 2020 Special Fall Study Report is part of the long-running Ferry Riders’ Opinion
Group and offers insights about near- and long-term impacts and a return to normal based on consumer input.

 PSRC Passenger-Only Ferry Study. PSRC completed its feasibility study of passenger-only ferry service. Although
new regional routes were not deemed feasible in the next 5-10 years, analysis generated by this study and
insights from the successful routes can provide useful input to strategies for increasing passenger-only ferry
options in the Peninsula region. We are happy to help in obtaining the data collected and generated by PSRC’s
consultants for use by PRTPO members.

 PRTPO Grant Support. Your PRTPO Coordinators can help you or your staff explore project funding
opportunities, review and comment on draft grant application materials, and provide basic maps to support
your grant. Importantly, PRTPO is pleased to provide a letter of support for any members applying for grants
from statewide processes. A letter from PRTPO demonstrates regional coordination and consistency, an
increasingly important factor in competitive funding processes.

 2021 PRTPO Resource Manual. The 2021 PRTPO Resource Manual is available for reference. A quick download
enables it to be a handy desktop reference with convenient hyperlinks that take you to the must current
information about and from PRTPO. It is updated throughout the year as needed. You can always find the
current version on the Documents page of the new PRTPO website.

 New PRTPO Website. Do check out the new website and let Ed and me know what you think. Find it at
www.PRTPO.org. You should be able to easily find PRTPO’s legislative folio and Transportation Outlook 2021
presentation, regional plans, and more. We will grow it slowly to meet the information and communication
needs of PRTPO. Your insights and experience as you use the site can help us make it better as we go.

For More Information: 
Thera Black | 360.878.0353 |  TheraB@PeninsulaRTPO.org 

Return to Agenda

https://wsdot.wa.gov/LocalPrograms/ProgramMgmt/STIP.htm
https://wsdot.wa.gov/publications/fulltext/state-of-transportation/
https://wstc.wa.gov/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/2020-Special-Fall-Survey-Report.pdf
https://www.psrc.org/passenger-ferry-study
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/5eebd256bac4f23605781ccb/t/6026281e71407f3e3dbf256b/1613113396976/2021+PRTPO+Resource+Manual_v2.0.pdf
https://www.prtpo.org/documents
http://www.prtpo.org/
mailto:TheraB@PeninsulaRTPO.org


PRTPO Quick Start Guide 

Here are links to some information that will help you quickly get up to speed on PRTPO – the organization – as 
well as the work we do and the products we produce.  

Website:  PRTPO.org 

• Meetings tab has agenda packets and access to meeting archives
• Documents tab is the place to go for PRTPO products
• Resources tab provides links to relevant regional resources outside PRTPO

PRTPO Resource Manual provides one-stop access to a wide range of information on PRTPO – the 
organization and membership, bylaws and operating procedures, documents, regulatory policy, and more. It is 
hyperlinked for ease of use and is updated throughout the year. It can be downloaded from the PRTPO 
website as a desktop reference tool. The 2021 Resource Manual will be available in February. 

Transportation Outlook 2021 describes primary issues and opportunities facing the region. Developed as an 
educational resource for legislators and their aides, this snapshot is also useful for explaining PRTPO priorities 
to peers and colleagues. A brief presentation provides a visual summary of the region and its priority issues. 

SFY 2021 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) is PRTPO’s work plan. It is based on the state fiscal year. 
We are about to start developing the SFY 2022-2023 UPWP, our first two-year work plan. We’ll kick that 
process off in February with the Executive Board. 

On Deck 
Consolidated Grants recommendations will come to the Board in February from the TAC. This is a statewide 
funding process that supports coordinated human services transportation needs. PRTPO’s role in that process 
is to rank proposals WSDOT received from applicants within the region. Those proposals are online.  Recorded 
presentations provide a useful overview of each proposal to go with cumbersome WSDOT application forms.  

PRTPO’s Big Framework Plans 
2040 Regional Transportation Plan is the long-range plan for the region. It explains the region’s transportation 
vision and includes an extensive inventory of facilities, lists of projects, and over 125 policies. Follow-up work 
over the next few years will focus on climate change and system resilience, two new areas for PRTPO.  

2019 Coordinated Human Services Transportation Plan is associated with the Consolidated Grants process. 
Updated every four years, this document identifies vulnerable population groups and their mobility needs, 
and the array of service providers helping to meet this need. It describes mobility strategies and then lists 
projects that could be supported through the Consolidated Grants process. All the projects identified in the 
2019 plan were funded in 2019. The next plan update will be in 2022 for adoption in early 2023. 

PRTPO Coordinator Contact 

Thera Black | TheraB@PeninsulaRTPO.org | 360.878.0353 

Edward Coviello | EdwardC@KitsapTransit.com | 360.824.4919 

PRTPO.org 

https://www.prtpo.org/
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/5eebd256bac4f23605781ccb/t/5fdbbee609134e214f5934a9/1608237209448/2020+PRTPO+Resource+Manual_v1.2
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/5eebd256bac4f23605781ccb/t/5fd3ab54c38e020d8d74e7df/1607707568702/2021+Legislative+Agenda+w+contacts.pdf
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/5eebd256bac4f23605781ccb/t/5fd3ab7336e0c524c5cff1c4/1607707522188/PRTPO+2021+Transportation+Outlook_all.pdf
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/5eebd256bac4f23605781ccb/t/5ff39312e293bc1fe2b960bb/1609798423944/SFY+2021+UPWP_+Amend+1.pdf
https://www.prtpo.org/documents
https://www.youtube.com/playlist?list=PLdygTQR5T_ZQFP5l-t0h8zFlP4OqUcTy6
https://www.youtube.com/playlist?list=PLdygTQR5T_ZQFP5l-t0h8zFlP4OqUcTy6
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/5eebd256bac4f23605781ccb/t/5f5276a772a11826cd52168b/1599239899220/PRTPO+Regional+Transportation+Plan+2040.pdf
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/5eebd256bac4f23605781ccb/t/5f5278b0bcd2616c11683980/1599240378134/PRTPO+Coordinated+Public+Transit-Human+Services+Transportation+Plan.pdf
mailto:TheraB@PeninsulaRTPO.org
mailto:EdwardC@KitsapTransit.com


PRTPO 2021 MEETING SCHEDULE 

EXECUTIVE BOARD 2021 Meeting Schedule 
February 19 

The Executive Board meets on the 3rd 
Friday of alternating months from 10:00 – 

12:00, beginning in February 

April 16 
June 18 

August 20 
October 15 

December 17 
 

TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 2021 Meeting Schedule 
January 21 

The TAC meets on the 3rd Thursday of 
alternating months from 10:00 – 12:00, 

beginning in January 

March 18 
May 20 
July 15 

September 16 
November 18 

 

Note: At this time we are planning these as online meetings. We will monitor conditions as they evolve and 
adapt to in-person meetings when deemed safe. PRTPO will continue to offer remote meeting access even 
after we return to meeting in purpose, to minimize impacts that time and distance have on regional 
participation. 

Agenda packets are sent out one week before meetings, at which time they are also available for download 
from the Meetings page of the PRTPO website. 

 
Broadening our communication outreach. 
Do you know someone who would benefit from occasional updates on PRTPO activities? Let us know. Several 
members have identified staff and other colleagues to receive updates when we send out information. If you 
know someone we should add to our general information list, please send us a name and email address. 

 

 

Your PRTPO Coordinators: 

Thera Black | 360.878.0353 |  TheraB@PeninsulaRTPO.org 

Edward Coviello | 360.824.4919 |  EdwardC@KitsapTransit.com 

PRTPO.org 

https://www.prtpo.org/meetings
mailto:TheraB@PeninsulaRTPO.org
mailto:EdwardC@KitsapTransit.com

	C-Consolidated Grants Recommendation.pdf
	2021 Consolidated Grants Ranking Results_7Jan21.pdf
	Evaluation Matrix_corr


	D-GIS Services Contract.pdf
	AWC_noncity participant form.pdf
	Association of Washington Cities
	Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Consortium Program
	Participation Agreement and Enrollment Application
	Member name


	GIS services agreement_working draft.pdf
	AWC_noncity participant form.pdf
	Association of Washington Cities
	Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Consortium Program
	Participation Agreement and Enrollment Application
	Member name



	PRTPO Purchase Request Form 21-01.pdf
	Request 21-01

	GIS services agreement_working draft.pdf
	AWC_noncity participant form.pdf
	Association of Washington Cities
	Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Consortium Program
	Participation Agreement and Enrollment Application
	Member name




	PRTPO Quick Start Guide.pdf
	PRTPO Quick Start Guide
	On Deck
	PRTPO’s Big Framework Plans





